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CITY OF YUBA CITY 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item 1

Date: May 3, 2011 

To: Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 

From: Public Works Department 

Presentation by: Ian Pietz, Senior Engineer 

Summary 

Subject: Water Rate Study 

Recommendation: a.  Accept and adopt the Water Rate Study. 
b. Adopt a Resolution approving guidelines for the submission and

tabulation of protests in connection with rate hearings. 
c. Set the protest hearing for July 12, 2011 at 5:00 pm at the Council

Chambers. 
d. Approve form of Notices for Proposition 218 Protest hearing.

Fiscal Impact: Additional revenues will be received if the water rate increase is successfully 
passed through a Proposition 218 vote. 

Background: 

The City adopted a rate increase in 2000.  The water rates included an annual cost of living 
adjustment of 4.5%, with the exception of 2006 which was slightly higher due to an energy 
surcharge.  The rate increase occurred annually in October of each year, with the last rate increase 
in October 2007.  Concerns for meeting Proposition 218 requirements and the ongoing recession 
put off further increases since 2007. 

The City’s water rates are not differentiated by the types of uses that are served, rather by the 
quantity of water consumed and service capacity.  The larger the meter size is, the larger the 
minimum monthly charge will be. 

Options for water rate charges were presented to Council at workshops on February 7th and March 
22nd of this year.  At the meetings, three alternatives for rate increases were considered: 

Alternative 1.  Existing Rate + Cost of Living Adjustment 

Alternative 2.  #1 + Major Capital Improvement Projects  

Alternative 3.  #2 + $1 million Recapitalization 

Alternative 1 provides enough of an increase to continue existing operations while accounting for 
inflationary adjustments for items such as; power and utilities, materials, supplies, services, and 
equipment.   
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Alternative 2 includes all adjustments in #1, plus provides funding for major projects identified in the 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  One of the projects specifically discussed at the workshop 
was the fish screen project and improvements to the existing low lift pump station located at the 
Feather River.  This project is necessary to avoid jeopardizing the City’s water permits/contracts 
and the grant funding that has already been secured for partial funding of the construction of the 
fish screens. 
 
Alternative 3 includes everything in #1 and #2, plus $1 million dedicated annually for 
recapitalization.  The fixed asset value of the water distribution system and treatment plant is 
approximately $112 million, with portions of the distribution system dating back to the 1920’s and 
the majority of the construction of the treatment plant dating back to its original construction in 1969. 
  
 
Council provided direction through the two workshops to implement Alternative 3, modify the 
minimum charges for landscape services, adjust the factors for determining minimum usage for 
larger water meters, and eliminate the senior citizen discount. 
 
Analysis: 
 
The draft Water Rate Study (Exhibit C) has been completed in accordance with Council’s direction 
at the workshops and the requirements of Proposition 218.  Table 1 below shows minimum monthly 
charges for a 1” water service (typical residential service).  Table 2 shows the proposed 5-year rate 
schedule for all water service sizes. 
 
TABLE 1 
Monthly Rate Increases (1” Service) 

 
Existing 

Rate 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Base Rate $17.36 $18.25 (5.1%) $19.39 $20.35 $20.98 $21.59 
% Increase  4.9% 5.9% 4.7% 3.0% 2.8% 

Flow Charge (Above 
Base Rate 
Allowance) 

$1.0851 $1.21 (10.1%) $1.28 $1.34 $1.39 $1.43 

% Increase  10.3% 5.5% 4.5% 3.6% 2.8% 
 
TABLE 2 
Monthly Water Rates 

 
Existing 

Rate 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

1” $17.36  $18.25 $19.39 $20.35 $20.98  $21.59 
1-1/2” $31.80  $36.50 $38.79 $40.70 $41.96  $43.18 

2” $101.76  $73.00 $77.58 $81.40 $83.93  $86.37 
3” $203.47  $292.01 $310.32 $325.60 $335.71  $345.47 
4” $382.16  $584.01 $620.64 $651.20 $671.42  $690.95 
6” $830.76  $1,095.02 $1,163.69 $1,220.99 $1,258.92  $1,295.52 

8”/Industrial $1,302.12 $2,555.05 $2,715.28 $2,848.98 $2,937.48  $3,022.89 
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Proposition 218 Process 
 
It is recommended that Council approve and adopt the attached guidelines for the submission and 
tabulation of protests (Exhibit A).  The guidelines describe who can protest, what information must 
be provided on the protest, how protests are tabulated, and what constitutes a majority protest.   
 
At Council’s direction, staff will mail the attached protest hearing notice (Exhibit B) to property 
owners and utility customers.  The protest hearing is scheduled for July 12, 2011, at 5:00 pm in the 
Council Chambers and the notices will be mailed not less than 45 days prior to the protest hearing.  
At the protest hearing, property owners or customers may provide testimony and submit their 
protests.  Protests may also be mailed or delivered to the City Clerk.  If more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the affected property owners or customers protest in writing before the close of the public 
hearing, the rate increase will fail.  If there is no majority protest, staff will make the appropriate 
changes to the rate ordinance for formal adoption by the Council.     
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Water sales revenues will vary with the selected alternative. 
 
Alternatives: 
 

a. Direct staff to consider a different rate increase phase in. 
b. Modify rates so that more or less Capital Improvement Program projects are included. 

 
Recommendation: 
 

a. Accept and adopt the Water Rate Study. 
b. Adopt a Resolution approving guidelines for the submission and tabulation of protests in 

connection with rate hearings. 
c.  Set the protest hearing for July 12, 2011 at 5:00 pm at the Council Chambers. 
d.  Approve form of Notices for Proposition 218 Protest hearing. 

 
Prepared by: Submitted by: 
 
/s/ Ian Pietz  /s/ Steven R. Jepsen 
Ian Pietz  Steven R. Jepsen 
Senior Engineer  City Manager 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
Department Head GM 
Finance RB 
City Attorney TH 
 
Attachments: 

Exhibit A – Guidelines for the Submission and Tabulation of Protests 
Exhibit B – Notice of Proposition 218 Protest Public Hearing Proposed Water Rate Increase 
Exhibit C – Water Rate Study 
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RESOLUTION NO. 11-________ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF YUBA CITY  
ADOPTING GUIDELINES FOR THE SUBMISSION AND TABULATION OF 

PROTESTS IN CONNECTION WITH RATE HEARINGS CONDUCTED  
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XIIID, SECTION 6 OF THE CALIFORNIA 

CONSTITUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

YUBA CITY AS FOLLOWS 
 
WHEREAS, Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution requires the 

Council to consider written protests to certain proposed increases to utility rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, this constitutional provision does not offer specific guidance as to who 

may submit protests, how written protests are to be submitted, or how the City is to tabulate 
the protests.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Yuba City 

that the City Council hereby adopts the guidelines for the submission and tabulation of 
protests attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference.  Resolution 
08-096 adopted on September 30, 2008 by this Council is hereby repealed. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Yuba City 
at a regular meeting held on the 3rd day of May 2011. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

              

        JOHN DUKES, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

TERREL LOCKE, CITY CLERK  
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Exhibit B 
 

Guidelines for the Submission and Tabulation of Protests 
 
When notice of a public hearing with respect to a utility or other rate increase has been given by 
the City pursuant to Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution, the following shall 
apply:   
 
Submission of Protests 
 
1. Any property owner or utility customer may submit a written protest to the City Clerk, either 

by mail or delivery to the City Clerk’s Office, 1201 Civic Center Blvd, Yuba City CA 95993 
or by submitting the protest at the public hearing.  Protests must be received by the end of 
the public hearing.  No postmarks will be accepted. 

2. Each protest must state that it is a protest (or indicate opposition to the proposed rates). If 
the City has given notices for public hearings regarding rates for both sewer and water 
service, and those hearing are to be held on the same date, then the protest may indicate 
whether it is made (i) with respect only to water rates, (ii) with respect only to sewer rates, 
or (iii) with respect to both water and sewer rates.  If no limitation is indicated, the City will 
interpret the protest as covering all rates to be considered on the hearing date.  Email or 
facsimile protests cannot be accepted.  Although oral comments at the public hearing will 
not qualify as a formal protest unless accompanied by a written protest, the City Council 
welcomes input from the community during the public hearing on the proposed fees. 

3. A protest by a property owner that is a trust must be signed by the Trustee and identified 
as such with the signature (i.e., John Smith, Trustee for Smith Family Trust).  Protests by 
property owners that are corporations, partnerships, or similar entities must be signed by a 
person authorized to execute documents on behalf of the property owner. 

4. If a parcel served by the City is owned by more than one record owner or more than one 
name appears on the City’s records as the customer for the property, or the customer is 
not the record owner, each owner or customer may submit a protest, but only one protest 
will be counted per parcel and any one protest submitted in accordance with these rules 
will be sufficient to count as a protest for that property 

5. In order to be valid, a protest must bear date, designation of parcel address or parcel 
number, printed name, and original signature of the record owner or customer of record 
with respect to the property identified on the protest.  The customer of record is the name 
of the person whose name is printed on the Utility Bills for the parcel.  Except as set forth 
in paragraph 3 above protests not bearing the original signature of a record owner or 
customer of record shall not be counted.  Protests which have been altered by someone 
other than the person who signed them shall not be counted.   

6. Any person who submits a protest may withdraw it by submitting to the City Clerk a dated 
written request that the protest be withdrawn.  The withdrawal of a protest shall contain 
sufficient information to identify the affected parcel and the name of the record owner or 
record customer who submitted both the protest and the request that it be withdrawn. 

7. A fee protest proceeding is not an election. 
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8. To ensure transparency and accountability in the fee protest tabulation, protests shall 
constitute disclosable public records from and after the close of the public hearing.  
Records shall be maintained for three years and then may be destroyed. 

 
Tabulation of Protests  
 
1. The City Clerk, or designee, shall determine the validity of all protests.  The City Clerk 

shall not accept as valid any protest if s/he determines that any of the following conditions 
exist: 

a. The protest does not identify a property that will be subject to the proposed fees. 

b. The protest does not bear an original signature of a record owner or identified as 
trustee of the parcel identified on the protest or of a record customer of that 
parcel. 

c. The protest does not state its opposition to the proposed fees or is illegible. 

d. The protest has been altered in any way by someone other than the person who 
signed it.   

e. The protest was not received by the City Clerk before the close of the public 
hearing on the proposed fees. 

f. A request to withdraw the protest was received by the City Clerk prior to the 
close of the public hearing on the proposed fees. 

g. The protest or request for withdrawal is dated prior to the date of mailing of the 
notices of hearing on the proposed fees. 

2. The City Clerk’s decision that a protest is not valid shall constitute a final action of the City 
and shall not be subject to any internal appeal. 

3. A majority protest exists if written protests are timely submitted and not withdrawn by the 
record owners, trustee, or customers with respect to, a majority (50.0% plus one) of the 
properties subject to the proposed fee.  If both water and sewer rates are being 
considered, a separate determination will be made for with respect to each of these two 
types of rates. 

4. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Clerk shall count all protests received, 
including those received during the public hearing, and shall report the results to the City 
Council upon completion.  If review of the protests received demonstrates that the number 
received is manifestly less than one-half of the parcels served by the City with respect to 
the fee which is the subject of the protest, then the City Clerk may advise the Council of 
the absence of a majority protest without determining the validity of all protests.   

5. If, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Clerk determines that s/he will require 
additional time to count the protests, s/he shall so advise the Council, which may adjourn 
the meeting to allow the count to be completed on another day or days.  If so, the Council 
shall declare the time and place of the count, which shall be conducted in a place where 
interested members of the public may observe the counting, and the Council shall declare 
the time at which its meeting shall be resumed to receive and act on the report of the 
Clerk. 
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Exhibit C 
 

Notice of Public Hearing  
Proposed Water Rate Increase 

 
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the City of Yuba City City Council to 
consider a proposed water rate increase.  
 
The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, July 12, 2011, at 5:00 pm at the Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 1201 Civic Center Boulevard, Yuba City, CA.  During the Proposition 218 protest hearing, 
the City Council will hear and consider any objections to the proposed water rate increase. 
 
This notice is being sent to the record owners of parcels that receive water service from the City 
and existing customers who currently receive water service from the City. 
 
The proposed rates are based upon the estimated cost to keep up with on-going operation and 
maintenance expenses, provide adequate debt service coverage for existing loans, and fund 
capitalization at a modest level to rehabilitate/replace deteriorating infrastructure.  They are 
designed to ensure that each customer only pay their proportional share of the water system costs. 
 
 
Proposed Water Rates 
 
Each water customer pays a monthly rate, based on the size of their water meter, plus a “flow 
rate” for each hundred cubic feet (HCF) of metered water use above the baseline use that is 
included in the monthly rate. 
 
Monthly Water Rates 

Meter 
Size 

Baseline 
HCF’s 

Existing 
Rate 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

1” 15 $17.36  $18.25 $19.39 $20.35 $20.98  $21.59 
1-1/2” 30 $31.80  $36.50 $38.79 $40.70 $41.96  $43.18 

2” 60 $101.76  $73.00 $77.58 $81.40 $83.93  $86.37 
3” 240 $203.47  $292.01 $310.32 $325.60 $335.71  $345.47 
4” 480 $382.16  $584.01 $620.64 $651.20 $671.42  $690.95 
6” 900 $830.76  $1,095.02 $1,163.69 $1,220.99 $1,258.92  $1,295.52 
8” 2,100 $1,302.12 $2,555.05 $2,715.28 $2,848.98 $2,937.48  $3,022.89 

 
Water Flow Rates 

 
Existing 

Rate 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Per Excess HCF $1.0851 $1.21 $1.28 $1.34 $1.39 $1.43 
 
If approved, the 2011/12 rates will go into effect 30 days after their adoption by ordinance of the 
City Council.  Rates for subsequent years will go into effect automatically on October 1 of the year 
indicated. 
 
 
Protest 
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You may submit a written protest against the proposed water rate increase with the City of Yuba 
City before the close of the public comment portion of the public hearing on July 12, 2011 at 
5:00 pm.  If written protests against the proposed water rate increase are filed by the record 
owners or customers of record with a respect to a majority of the parcels to which the proposed 
water rate increase applies, the rate increase will not be imposed.  Only one protest will be 
counted per parcel. 
 
A written protest may be submitted by a record owner or a customer of record and must (i) 
indicate opposition to the proposed rates, (ii) be signed and dated, and  (iii) indicate the name of 
the person submitting the protest and the address or parcel number of the parcel for which the 
protest is submitted.  Protests may be mailed or delivered to: 
 
City of Yuba City 
Proposed Utility Rate Increase Protest 
City Clerk 
1201 Civic Center Boulevard 
Yuba City, CA  95993 
 
Protests must be received by the City Clerk at this address prior to the public hearing.  Protests 
may also be submitted to the City Clerk at the public hearing any time prior to the close of public 
input.  Emailed or faxed protests cannot be accepted.  Protests will be accepted and tabulated 
according to procedures adopted by the City Council, which are available for review at 
www.yubacity.net .
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Exhibit C 
 

Water Rate Study 
 

























































































 
 

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
MARYSVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

 
 

  
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 

 
For the years ended 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 
 
 



 
YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 

MARYSVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT 

AUDITORS' REPORTS  
 

For the Years Ended 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 



 

Exhibit Page

AGENCY OFFICIALS 2

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report 4 - 5

Management's Discussion and Analysis 6 - 10
 

Financial Statements:   

Statements of Net Position 1 11
 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 2 12
   

Statements of Cash Flows 3 13 - 14
 

Notes to Financial Statements 16 - 37

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 39

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Schedule of Net Position by Unit 41

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position by Unit 42

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS   

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial   
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards  44 - 45

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
TABLE OF CONTENTS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

 
 



 

Page 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NAME OFFICE TERM EXPIRES

Roger Abe Chairman December 2016
 

Sid Muck Vice-Chairman December 2014

Tib Belza Director December 2016
 

Mary Jane Griego Director December 2016
 

John Nicolletti Director December 2016

Hal Stocker Director December 2014

Andy Vasquez Director December 2014

 
OTHER AGENCY OFFICIALS

 
Curt Aikens General Manager

Mike Kline Power Systems Manager

Page Hensley Finance Manager

Agency Officials
June 30, 2013

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY

 
 

 



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 



 

Page 4 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
Chairman of the Board, General Manager 
  and Members of the Board of Directors  
Yuba County Water Agency 
Marysville, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Yuba County Water Agency (the Agency), 
a component unit of the County of Yuba, California, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic 
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for 
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Yuba County Water Agency as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the respective 
change in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting systems 
prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special districts.  

 
 Davis W. Hammon, Jr., CPA 

 (1924-1989) 
 

 Stephen B. Norman, CPA • PFS 
 Stephen J. Herr, CPA 
James L. Duckett, CPA 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
2080 Myers Street, Suite 3, Oroville, CA  95966-5341    (530) 533-3392    FAX (530) 533-2714 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and Schedule of Funding Progress For Other Post-Employment Benefits on 
pages 6 through 10 and page 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Yuba County Water Agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information on pages 41 through 42 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 
2013, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Davis Hammon & Co. 
 
December 20, 2013
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YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY 
 
The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
report information about the Agency’s activities in a way that will help the reader determine if the 
Agency, as a whole, is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. In addition, the reader will 
need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new or changed 
government legislation. 
 
NET POSITION 
 
As can be seen in Table 1 below, Net Position increased by $9.74 million to a balance of $210.25 
million in FY 2012-13, up from a $200.60 million balance in FY 2011-12. This small increase is the 
result of a $3.98 million net decrease in Total Assets offset by a $13.72 million decrease in Total 
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows, the most notable being early extinguishment of Long-term debt. 
 

TABLE 1
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Dollar Percent
2013 2012 Change Change

ASSETS:
Current assets 46,956,036$         61,864,583$         (14,908,547)$        -24.10%
Restricted assets -                             1,069,128              (1,069,128)            -100.00%
Capital assets, net 177,884,676         165,797,504         12,087,172           7.29%
Other assets 5,239,241              5,323,861              (84,620)                 -1.59%

TOTAL ASSETS 230,079,953      234,055,076      (3,975,123)         -1.70%

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities 3,143,827              3,957,227              (813,400)               -20.55%
Long-term debt -                             7,745,369              (7,745,369)            -100.00%

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,143,827          11,702,596        (8,558,769)         -73.14%

DEFERRED INFLOWS:
Deferred Income 16,589,847        21,748,909        (5,159,062)         -23.72%

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 16,589,847        21,748,909        (5,159,062)         (0)             

NET POSITION:
Investment in capital assets,

Net of related debt 177,884,676         159,142,508         18,742,168           11.78%
Restricted -                             1,055,294              (1,055,294)            -100.00%
Unrestricted 32,461,603           40,405,769           (7,944,166)            -19.66%

TOTAL NET POSITION 210,346,279$    200,603,571$    9,742,708$        4.86%

Fiscal year ended June 30,
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REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
While the Statements of Changes in Net Position shows the changes in financial position, the Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides answers concerning the nature and source 
of these changes. As shown in Table 2 below, Operating Revenues increased $9.71 million due in equal 
parts to increased electric revenues and supplemental water sales in 2013. This, combined with fairly 
stable expense levels, resulted in a Net Position increase of $9.74 million. 
 

TABLE 2
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Dollar Percent
2013 2012 Change Change

REVENUES
Operating revenues:

Sales of electrical energy 20,745,733$        16,558,202$        4,187,531$          25.29%
Water sales 5,816,330            295,692                5,520,638            1867.02%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 26,562,063       16,853,894       9,708,169         57.60%

Non-operating revenues 2,165,410            2,903,691            (738,281)$            -25.43%
Non-Recurring Gain - 

Early extinquishment of debt 315,250                -                             315,250                100.00%

TOTAL REVENUES 29,042,723       19,757,585       9,285,138         47.00%

EXPENSES:
Depreciation expense 3,334,862            3,374,016            (39,154)                 -1.16%
Operating expense, excluding

depreciation expense 9,559,538            8,300,366            1,259,172            15.17%
Non-operating expense 6,405,615            6,990,729            (585,114)              -8.37%

TOTAL EXPENSES 19,300,015       18,665,111       634,904            3.40%

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 9,742,708         1,092,474         8,650,234         791.80%

Net assets, July 1: 200,603,571        199,511,097        1,092,474            0.55%

NET POSITION, JUNE 30 210,346,279$    200,603,571$    9,742,708$       4.86%

Fiscal year ended June 30,
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The following chart illustrates the revenues of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
 

Sales of Electrical 
Energy
71.4%

Recreation & 
Miscellaneous

1.2%

Grants & Irrigation 
Reimbursements

2.9%

Interest Income & 
Non-recurring Gain 

3.1%

Water Sales
20.0%

Property Taxes
1.3%

Yuba County Water Agency
Revenues - $29,042,723

 
 
The following chart illustrates the expenses of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
 

Electric Generation
50%Depreciation & 

Amortization
17%

General Fund G&A
18%

Recreation/Irrig. & 
Miscellaneous

7%

Special Projects
8%

Yuba County Water Agency
Expenses - $19,300,015
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
As can be seen in Table 3 below, the Agency’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
increased by $12.09 million to $177.88 million. This increase includes $7.32 million in Relicensing CIP, 
and $7.13 million for the Colgate Unit 2 Generator Rewind, offset by $3.19 million in increased 
depreciation. The Penstock Guard Valve Project was completed this year, as well, with a final cost of 
$5.87 million. A summary of the Agency’s capital assets are as follows: 
 

Dollar Percent
2013 2012 Change Change

Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land and water rights 2,929,275$          2,929,275$          -$                         0.00%
Canal acquisitions 4,605,454            4,605,454             -                           0.00%
Construction-in-process 37,183,741          35,749,390          1,434,351          4.01%

44,718,470          43,284,119          1,434,351          3.31%
Depreciable capital assets, net:

Util ity plant and equipment 234,651,903        220,813,536        13,838,367        6.27%
Non-util ity property, at cost 5,649,957            5,649,266             691                     0.01%

240,301,860        226,462,802        13,839,058        6.11%

Less: Accumulated depreciation (107,135,654)      (103,949,417)       (3,186,237)         3.07%
NET CAPITAL ASSETS 177,884,676$    165,797,504$    12,087,172$    7.29%

TABLE 3
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 
LONG TERM DEBT 
 
At year-end, the Agency had $19.73 million in Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows, down from the 
FY 2011-12 balances of $33.45 million. Supplemental water sales reduced Deferred Income by $3.86 
million and the Agency owed vendors and PG&E $1.3 million less than at June 30, 2012. Most 
importantly, the Agency’s early extinguishment of the Yuba River Development Revenue Bonds, 
Series A and Series B in early 2013 accounted for another $7.75 million reduction. These bonds were 
secured by prior lien on Power Revenues to be received from Pacific Gas & Electric Company under the 
Power Purchase Contract between the Agency and the Company. More detailed information about the 
Agency’s long term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to these financial statements beginning on page 27. 
 
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
The Yuba County Water Agency is continuing work on several flood mitigation projects and studies 
within the scope of Forecasted Coordinated Operations. We have completed a groundwater monitoring 
well construction project with AB303 ($250K) funding, and anticipate receiving additional funding 
($225K) from the same program to develop the YCWA Groundwater Model. We have completed work 
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on an Agriculture Water Management Plan and irrigation water metering and measurement plan to be in 
compliance with SBX7-7. We have been awarded a planning grant from DWR in the amount of $630K 
to update our current IRWMP as required by Proposition 84, and a $125K grant from the California 
Water Foundation for development of an Integrated Water Management Decision Support System. 
 
The Agency has joined with Yuba County to provide the local share ($46.6 million) for a $138 million 
Prop 1E Levee Improvement Grant. Financing was completed in September 2008; the Three Rivers 
Levee Improvement Authority has constructed the Feather River Setback Levee and other levee 
improvements in the Reclamation District 78 territory. One more phase of work is needed by TRLIA to 
improve the level of protection to a 200 year level. 
 
The Lower Yuba Accord was settled and new Water Rights Order #2008-0014 was issued in 2008, 
securing long term water transfer ability through 2025. Dry water conditions created water transfers of 
81,681 acre-feet in 2012 and a similar amount is expected in 2013 due to continuing dry conditions.  
 
The Agency was granted a 50 year license to operate the Yuba River Project for generation of 
electricity; Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) License #2246 expires in 2016. HDR 
Engineering, Inc. has been retained to lead the Agency through the 8-year FERC relicensing effort. A 
cash reserve sufficient to cover anticipated costs has been established. The Draft License Application 
was filed with FERC on December 1, 2013 and the Final License Application is due by April 30, 2014. 
This work represents the bulk of the FERC relicensing expenditures.  
 
The Agency has a legal obligation to move forward on a new fish screen for the South Canal Diversion 
to replace the existing screen as part of a lawsuit settlement. The agreements with the South Member 
Units call for them to pay the entire cost of a new screen but require the Agency to offer financing. 
YCWA is proceeding with a collaborative effort with the South Member Units to select a suitable 
project. Preliminary study results indication there may be a screen option in the $5 million range. Sound 
fiscal management and finalization of the Lower Yuba River Accord have had a positive effect on the 
Agency’s reserves which have achieved levels sufficient to satisfy long term operations and capital 
project needs. 
 
CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the Agency’s finances and to demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Yuba County Water Agency, Department of Financial Services at 1220 F Street, Marysville, 
CA  95901. 
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Exhibit 1

ASSETS 2013 2012

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 44,121,322$    54,589,730$    
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 1,069,128       
Receivables

Accounts receivable             337,290          4,392,518       
Taxes and interest receivable 96,922            200,256          

Due from other governments 1,150,349       1,151,469       
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,250,153       1,530,610       

Total Current Assets 46,956,036     62,933,711     

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets 44,718,470     43,284,119     
Depreciable capital assets, net 133,166,206    122,513,385    

Capital Assets, Net 177,884,676    165,797,504    

Other Assets:
Loans receivable from other governmental entities 5,239,241       5,323,861       

Total Assets 230,079,953    234,055,076    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,399,742       3,305,707       
Customer deposits 20,000
Wages payable 93,349            73,647
Accrued compensated absences 650,736          557,873

  
Total Current Liabilities 3,143,827       3,957,227       

  
Long-Term Debt:

Accrued interest and matured bonds payable 4,252,973
Bonds payable, due after one year 3,492,396

  
Total Long-Term Debt -                 7,745,369       

  
Total Liabilities 3,143,827       11,702,596     

  
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred income 16,589,847     21,748,909

Total Deferred Inflows Of Resources 16,589,847 21,748,909

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 177,884,676    159,142,508
Restricted for debt service 1,055,294
Unrestricted net assets 32,461,603     40,405,769

Total Net Position 210,346,279$  200,603,571$  

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013 and 2012
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Exhibit 2

2013 2012
Operating Revenues:

Sale of electrical energy 20,745,733$     16,558,202$     
Water sales 5,816,330        295,692

Total Operating Revenues 26,562,063      16,853,894      

Operating Expenses:
Hydropower generation 2,777,061        2,916,430        
Administration and general 5,105,057        4,335,659        
Maintenance 1,677,420        1,048,277        
Depreciation and amortization 3,334,862        3,374,016        

Total Operating Expenses 12,894,400      11,674,382      

Net Income From Operations 13,667,663      5,179,512        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets 25,708             3,816              
Property taxes 382,596           392,829           
Interest income 584,168           746,882           
Grants and reimbursements 850,995           1,441,043        
Miscellaneous income (expense) 6,000              6,000              
Recreation and camping fees 315,943           313,121           
Interest expense (69,527)            (8,480)             
General administration (3,539,961)       (3,291,800)       
Recreation and irrigation (1,202,675)       (1,121,617)       
Special projects expense (1,593,452)       (2,568,832)       

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (4,240,205)       (4,087,038)       

Income (loss) before special item 9,427,458        1,092,474        

Special item: gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 315,250           

Change in Net Position 9,742,708        1,092,474        

Net Position, July 1 200,603,571     199,511,097     

Net Position, June 30 210,346,279$   200,603,571$   

For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
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Exhibit 3

Page 1 of 2

2013 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers 25,458,229$ 16,858,360$ 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,064,124)    (1,657,336)    
Cash payments for employee wages and benefits (6,028,357)    (5,235,433)    

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 15,365,748   9,965,591     

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Payments on loans receivable 500,422       419,700       
Loans made to other agencies (415,802)      (1,440,218)    
Grants and reimbursements 852,115       5,458,955     
Tax assessment 382,596       392,829       
Miscellaneous income (expense) 6,000           6,000           
Recreation and camping fees 315,943       313,121       
General administration expenses (3,539,961)    (3,291,800)    
Recreation and other expenses (1,202,675)    (1,121,617)    
Special program expenses (1,593,452)    (2,568,832)    

  
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Noncapital Financing Activities (4,694,814)    (1,831,862)    

Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (306,903)      (52,790)        
Costs incurred on construction in progress projects (15,110,178)  (7,727,467)
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,234,000)    (7,680,000)    
Interest paid (3,270,599)    (328,720)      

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Capital and Related
Financing Activities (22,921,680)  (15,788,977)  

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment 25,708         3,816           
Interest received 687,502       769,632       

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 713,210       773,448       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (11,537,536)  (6,881,800)    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 55,658,858   62,540,658   

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 44,121,322$ 55,658,858$ 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 44,121,322$ 54,589,730$ 
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 1,069,128     

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 44,121,322$ 55,658,858$ 

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
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Exhibit 3

Page 2 of 2

2013 2012

Reconciliation of Net Income from Operations to Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities:

Net income from operations 13,667,663$ 5,179,512$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,334,862     3,374,016     
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 4,055,228     (36,680)        
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 280,457       201,864       
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities (905,965)      1,222,049     
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits (20,000)        (600)             
Increase (decrease) in wages payable 19,702         (160,028)      
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated 

absences 92,863         144,312       
Increase (decrease) in deferred income (5,159,062)    41,146         

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities 15,365,748$ 9,965,591$   

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

  Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:

Change in fair value of investments (86,932)$      (349,445)$     

Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 315,250$      

For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Established in 1959 by an act of the California State Legislature and headquartered in historic 
Marysville, California, Yuba County Water Agency (Agency) is a public agency governed by a 
seven member Board of Directors comprised of the five members of the Yuba County Board of 
Supervisors and two members elected at large. The primary functions of the Agency are 
development and sale of hydroelectric power, flood control, fisheries enhancement, recreation, 
conservation, storage of water, and wholesale of water to member districts.  
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The Agency’s financial statements include all financial transactions for which the Agency is 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a majority of a 
component unit’s board and either the ability to impose the will of the Agency or the 
possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial 
burden on the Agency. Based on these criteria, the Agency has determined that there are 
no component units that come under the criteria for inclusion. However, the Agency is a 
component unit of the County of Yuba, California. As a result, the financial activities of the 
Agency are included in the annual financial report of the County of Yuba which is available 
at the Auditor-Controller’s office located at 915 8th Street, Suite 105, Marysville, California 
95901. 
 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The Agency’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of timing of the 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year they are levied. 
Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on 
July 1, and are payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The County of 
Yuba bills and collects property taxes and remits them to the Agency in installments during 
the year. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements, imposed by the provider, have been met. 

 
The financial activities of the Agency are accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for operations which are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the 
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

 
To enhance accountability, the Agency’s enterprise fund consists of the following units: 
 

 General Fund  Power Revenue Fund 
 Operation and Maintenance Fund  Series A Interest Fund 
 General Fund Hydro Fund  Series A Sinking Fund 
 Hydroelectric Utility Fund  Series B Interest Fund 

 Health RA Fund 
 

Inter-unit balances have been eliminated from the statement of net position amounts. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 
 
The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from 
the ongoing principal operations of the Agency. Operating revenues consist primarily of 
charges for services. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and 
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and result from 
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
The Agency’s financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments. The Agency has also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62 
with respect to financial reporting guidance. 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 
 

1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Agency includes all cash accounts, which are 
not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties, and all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. 
 
See Note 2 for additional information about the Agency’s cash and investments. 
 

2) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts   
An allowance for doubtful accounts has not been provided because, in the opinion of 
management, receivable balances are fully collectible. 

 
3) Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid expenses. 

 
4) Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are 
reported in the Agency’s financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Agency 
as assets with an initial individual cost of $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. 
 
Capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at 
estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Contributed capital assets 
are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset, 
or materially extend asset lives, are not capitalized. 
 
The cost of assets sold or retired is eliminated from the property and equipment 
accounts with any gain or loss recorded. Fully depreciated assets remain in the 
accounts until such assets are no longer in service. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 
 

4) Capital Assets (Continued) 
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
 

Description 
 Estimated  

Life 
   

Facilities and improvements  25 - 50 years 
Buildings and structures  40 years 
Equipment and furniture  2 - 10 years 

 
Depreciation expense, by function, was as follows: 
 

2013 2012

Hydraulic production 2,615,986$    2,617,846$    
Electric plant acquisition 97,464          97,464          
Transmission equipment 10,462          22,084          
General plant 506,212        517,665        
Intangible assets 5,249            5,249            
Recreation facilities 82,984          82,984          
Irrigation canals 11,552          11,551          

Total 3,329,909$    3,354,843$    

 

5) Compensated Absences 
Employees are paid for 100% of their accumulated vacation upon retirement or other 
termination. In addition, 45% of the sick leave benefits are paid to employees with ten 
or more years of service upon retirement or termination up to a maximum accrual of 
1,040 hours. The Agency has accrued a liability for vacation and sick leave, which has 
been earned, but not taken, by Agency employees. This liability has been recorded in 
accompanying financial statements. 
 

6) Deferred Income 
See Notes 1(C) (10) and (11) for an explanation of deferred income amounts and the 
related reclassification. 
 

7) Bond Discounts 
Bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond discounts. 
 

8) Net Position 
 
Restricted: 
Restricted net assets consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grants, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other government or constraints imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enable legislation. Restrictions include a restriction 
for debt service as required by related debt covenants and the balance of amounts 
received for debt service and operations and maintenance of the hydroelectric facility. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 
 
8) Net Position (Continued) 

 
Unrestricted: 
Designations of unrestricted net position are imposed by the Board of Directors to reflect 
future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources. Designations 
may be modified, amended, or removed by Board action. The designations included: 

 
2013 2012

Capital facilities - recreation 46,868$        45,631$        
Ground water 388,640        318,207        
Relicensing 2,473,394     9,718,357     
Fishery enhancement 928,341        465,280        
Project development 14,066,021    13,033,928    
Future operations & administration 13,939,015    14,797,177    
River management 619,324        550,895        

Subtotal - Designated 32,461,603    38,929,475    

Undesignated -               1,476,294     

Total Unrestricted Net Position 32,461,603$  40,405,769$  

 

 Designated for Capital Facilities - Recreation – to segregate a portion of net assets for 
fees collected for capital facilities projects in the recreation area. 

 Designated for Ground Water – to segregate a portion of net assets for the monitoring 
of ground water. 

 Designated for Relicensing – to segregate a portion of net assets designated for the 
future relicensing costs for the Agency. 

 Designated for Fishery Enhancement – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for fish monitoring and habitat improvements. 

 Designated for Project Development – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for water resources and flood control related studies and capital projects. 

 Designated for Future Operations & Administration – to segregate a portion of net 
assets designated for future general and administrative operations. 

 Designated for River Management – to segregate a portion of net assets designated 
for Accord River Management Team directed projects. 

 
9) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statement in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued) 
 

10) Reclassifications 
 For the year ended June 30, 2013, certain classifications have been changed to 
improve financial statement presentation. For comparative purposes, prior year 
balances have been reclassified to conform to current presentation. Reclassifications 
had no effect on previously reported assets, liabilities, net position, or changes in net 
position other than the reclassification of deferred income amounts from liabilities to 
deferred inflows of resources. The deferred income amounts are classified as deferred 
inflows of resources because they represent money received for water and electricity 
sold but not yet delivered.  

 
11) New Pronouncements 

 Effective July 1, 2012, the Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position. This statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources, which Concepts Statement No. 4 introduced and defined those 
elements as consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future 
reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable 
to a future reporting period, respectively. Statement No. 63 amends the net assets 
reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 by incorporating deferred inflows 
and outflows into the definitions of the required components of residual measure and 
by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. As a result of the 
implementation of Statement No. 63, certain items were reclassified as deferred inflows 
on the statements of net position.  

 
 In June 2012, the GASB approved Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions. This statement requires governments providing defined benefit 
pension plans to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability 
in the statement of net position and to more comprehensively and comparably measure 
the annual costs of pension benefits. Statement No. 68 also requires revised and new 
note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) to be reported by 
employers. The implementation of this GASB statement could have a significant impact 
on the Agency’s financial statements and is effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2015. 

 
 

NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, at fair value, consisted of the following: 
 

2013 2012
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 525$            525$            
Deposits in financial institutions 1,366,558     965,736       
Cash and investments with county treasurer 42,754,239   53,623,469   

Total unrestricted 44,121,322   54,589,730   

Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Mutual fund accounts 1,069,128     

Total cash and investments 44,121,322$ 55,658,858$ 

Fiscal year ended June 30,
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will 
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 
 
At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the Agency’s deposits was $1,366,558, and the 
balances in financial institutions were $1,755,991. Of the balances in financial institutions, 
$264,500 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $1,491,491 was collateralized as 
required by state law (Government Code §53630) by the pledging financial institution with 
assets held in a common pool for the Agency and other governmental agencies. State law 
requires that the market value of the common pool of collateral be equal to or greater than 
110% of all public deposits with the pledging financial institution if governmental securities are 
used, or 150% if mortgages are used, as collateral. The collateral is not held by or in the name 
of the Agency.  
 
At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the Agency’s deposits was $965,736, and the 
balances in financial institutions were $1,065,649. Of the balances in financial institutions, 
$250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $815,649 was collateralized as 
described above. 
 
The restricted cash and cash equivalents are for the bond debt service requirements. 
 
The Agency’s investments in mutual funds and the Yuba County Treasurer are stated at fair 
value. The Agency maintains a significant portion of its cash in Yuba County’s cash and 
investment pool. Yuba County apportions interest and changes in fair value to the Agency’s 
funds quarterly based upon average cash balances. Investments held in the County’s cash and 
investment pool are available on demand to the Agency and are stated at fair value. 
Information regarding categorization of investments can be found in the Yuba County’s financial 
statement. The Yuba County cash and investment pool is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission as an investment company and is in accordance with the applicable 
laws and regulations of the State of California. The fair value of the Agency’s position in the 
pool is the same as the value of its pool shares. The County has not provided or obtained any 
legally binding guarantees to support the value of the accounts. 
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
Investment policy: Pursuant to Board Resolutions 2013-06 and 2012-06, the Agency 
reaffirmed the County of Yuba, California’s investment policy as the Agency’s policy. Under the 
County’s policy, the permissible investments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, included the following instruments: 

 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One issuer

Federal Agency Obligations 5 Years None None
U.S. Treasury Bills 5 Years None None
State of California Obligations 5 Years None None
Local Agency Bonds and Obligations 5 Years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 Days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 Days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30% None
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 Year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 Days 20% None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 Years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A None None
 
Investments authorized by debt agreements: Investments held by the bond fiscal agent 
(trustee) are governed by the provisions of the debt indenture agreement rather than the 
provisions of the Agency’s investment policy of the California Government Code. 
 
Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an 
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. 
 
Credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Specific credit risk ratings for investment 
assets held for the Agency by the County of Yuba are provided in the County of Yuba’s annual 
financial report. 
 
Concentration of credit risk: The Agency does not have a policy that limits the amount that 
can be invested in any one issuer. A majority of the Agency’s investments are held with the 
County pool where the concentration of credit risk is not determinable. 
 
 

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

The accounts receivable consists of the following: 
 

2013 2012

Irrigation and gauging receivables 103,776$      103,776$      
Due from marina operations 196,258        315,964        
Due from Pacific Gas & Electric 37,256          3,972,778     

TOTALS 337,290$      4,392,518$    

Fiscal year ended June 30,
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NOTE 4 LOANS RECEIVABLE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 
 

The loans receivable consists of the following at June 30, 2013: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Payments June 30, 2013

Yuba County RDA/County
Of Yuba as Successor Agency 920,698$      8,266$          928,964$       

North Yuba Water District 529,695         (47,895)$      481,800         
Reclamation District No. 784 375,065         (374,826)      239                 
Cordua Irrigation District 99,857           (36)                 99,821           
Dry Creek Mutual Water Company 1,682,843     (77,665)         1,605,178      
City of Marysville Levee District 1,715,703     407,536       2,123,239      

TOTALS 5,323,861$   415,802$     (500,422)$    5,239,241$   

 

The loans receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2012: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Payments June 30, 2012

Yuba County RDA/County
Of Yuba as Successor Agency 910,816$      11,882$       (2,000)$         920,698$       

North Yuba Water District 533,886         12,809          (17,000)         529,695         
Reclamation District No. 784 423,960         6,305            (55,200)         375,065         
Ramirez Water District 6,463             37                  (6,500)           -                  
Cordua Irrigation District 99,872           3,985            (4,000)           99,857           
Dry Creek Mutual Water Company 1,758,335     27,808          (103,300)      1,682,843      
City of Marysville Levee District 570,011         1,377,392    (231,700)      1,715,703      

TOTALS 4,303,343$   1,440,218$  (419,700)$    5,323,861$   

 

Regarding the loan to the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency, the state Redevelopment 
Dissolution Act (AB 1X 26) dissolved the Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012. On 
March 27, 2012, the Yuba County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2012-20 
designating the Board of Supervisors of the County of Yuba to serve as the successor agency 
of the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency. As a result of this legislation, the successor 
agency was required to obtain formal approval for the recognition of the obligation to repay 
outstanding debts. On May 27, 2012, the California Department of Finance issued a letter to 
the successor agency approving the obligation for repayment of the loan made by Yuba County 
Water Agency to the Yuba County Redevelopment Agency.  
 
Each loan accrues interest at a rate established by the Agency as agreed to in the originating 
loan agreement. Typically, the rate is based on an average of the interest rate paid by the 
County of Yuba, California Treasurer on the investment pool for the preceding 12 months. The 
interest rates were 1.249% to 4.00% and 1.436% to 4.00% at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. 
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The details of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Water rights 85,835$           85,835$           

Land and land rights 2,841,991        2,841,991        

Construction in progress 6,819,138        7,510,908$     (13,675,827)$  654,219           

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 9,746,964        7,510,908        (13,675,827)    3,582,045        

General Fund:
Land and land rights 1,449                1,449                

Canals 4,605,454        4,605,454        

Construction in progress 28,930,252     7,599,270        36,529,522     

Total General Fund 33,537,155     7,599,270        -                    41,136,425     

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED 43,284,119     15,110,178     (13,675,827)    44,718,470     

CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production 205,270,191   13,626,063     (811)                  218,895,443   

Electric plant acquisition 4,485,248        4,485,248        

Transmission equipment 1,391,312        49,764             (30,000)            1,411,076        

General plant 6,611,081        284,919           (91,568)            6,804,432        

Intangible assets 248,292           248,292           

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 218,006,124   13,960,746     (122,379)          231,844,491   

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production 2,807,412        2,807,412        

General Fund:
Recreation facilities 1,516,201        1,516,201        

General plant 3,533,218        21,984             (21,293)            3,533,909        

Irrigation canals 599,847           599,847           

Total General Fund 5,649,266        21,984             (21,293)            5,649,957        

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING
DEPRECIATED 226,462,802   13,982,730     (143,672)          240,301,860   
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production (89,255,950)    (2,512,643)      811                   (91,767,782)    

Electric plant acquisition (4,093,488)      (97,464)            (4,190,952)      

Transmission equipment (1,351,895)      (10,462)            30,000             (1,332,357)      

General plant (4,962,622)      (263,725)          91,568             (5,134,779)      

Intangible assets (220,458)          (5,249)              (225,707)          

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund (99,884,413)    (2,889,543)      122,379           (102,651,577)  

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production (1,947,842)      (103,342)          (2,051,184)      

General Fund:
Recreation facilities (910,810)          (82,984)            (993,794)          

General plant (945,063)          (242,488)          21,293             (1,166,258)      

Irrigation canals (261,289)          (11,552)            (272,841)          

Total General Fund (2,117,162)      (337,024)          21,293             (2,432,893)      

TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (103,949,417)  (3,329,909)      143,672           (107,135,654)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 122,513,385   10,652,821     -                    133,166,206   

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 165,797,504$ 25,762,999$   (13,675,827)$  177,884,676$ 

 
The details of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Water rights 85,835$           85,835$           

Land and land rights 2,841,991        2,841,991        

Construction in progress 5,686,850        1,190,502$     (58,214)$          6,819,138        

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 8,614,676        1,190,502        (58,214)            9,746,964        

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Construction in progress 21,863             10,011             (31,874)            -                    

Total General Fund Hydro Fund 21,863             10,011             (31,874)            -                    

General Fund:
Land and land rights 1,449                1,449                

Canals 4,605,454        4,605,454        

Construction in progress 22,403,298     6,526,954        28,930,252     

Total General Fund 27,010,201     6,526,954        -                    33,537,155     

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED 35,646,740     7,727,467        (90,088)            43,284,119     
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production 205,218,351   72,077             (20,237)            205,270,191   

Electric plant acquisition 4,485,248        4,485,248        

Transmission equipment 1,391,312        1,391,312        

General plant 6,611,081        6,611,081        

Intangible assets 248,292           248,292           

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund 217,954,284   72,077             (20,237)            218,006,124   

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production 2,775,538        31,874             2,807,412        

General Fund:
Recreation facilities 1,518,693        (2,492)              1,516,201        

General plant 3,513,467        38,927             (19,176)            3,533,218        

Irrigation canals 599,847           599,847           

Total General Fund 5,632,007        38,927             (21,668)            5,649,266        

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING
DEPRECIATED 226,361,829   142,878           (41,905)            226,462,802   

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Hydroelectric Utility Fund:

Hydraulic production (86,770,778)    (2,505,409)      20,237             (89,255,950)    

Electric plant acquisition (3,996,024)      (97,464)            (4,093,488)      

Transmission equipment (1,329,811)      (22,084)            (1,351,895)      

General plant (4,685,048)      (277,574)          (4,962,622)      

Intangible assets (215,209)          (5,249)              (220,458)          

Total Hydroelectric Utility Fund (96,996,870)    (2,907,780)      20,237             (99,884,413)    

General Fund Hydro Fund:
Hydraulic production (1,835,405)      (112,437)          (1,947,842)      

General Fund:
Recreation facilities (830,318)          (82,984)            2,492                (910,810)          

General plant (724,148)          (240,091)          19,176             (945,063)          

Irrigation canals (249,738)          (11,551)            (261,289)          

Total General Fund (1,804,204)      (334,626)          21,668             (2,117,162)      

TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (100,636,479)  (3,354,843)      41,905             (103,949,417)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 125,725,350   (3,211,965)      -                    122,513,385   

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 161,372,090$ 4,515,502$     (90,088)$          165,797,504$ 
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NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

The following is a summary of debt transactions of the Agency for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2013: 
 

Balance Additions/ Balance Due within
July 1, 2012 Adjustments Retirements June 30, 2013 one year

Yuba River Development
Series A Revenue Bonds 2,728,000$   (2,728,000)$  -$             
Series B Revenue Bonds 1,506,000     (1,506,000)    -               

Subtotal 4,234,000     -$             (4,234,000)    -               -$             
Less: bond discount (741,604)       736,651        4,953           -               

Bonds payable, net 3,492,396     736,651        (4,229,047)    -               
Less: portion due within one year -               -               

Bonds payable, due after one year 3,492,396$   736,651$      (4,229,047)$  -$             

 
All remaining bonded debt was paid in full during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
Therefore, a schedule identifying the annual requirements to amortize all debt is not presented 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
 

Bonds Payable 
 
$160,740,000 Yuba River Development Revenue Bonds, Series A dated 
May 5, 1966. A total of $185,000,000 of revenue bonds were authorized at 
an election held on May 16, 1961. They are secured by a prior lien on Power 
Revenues to be received from Pacific Gas and Electric Company under the 
Power Purchase Contract between the Agency and the Company. Sinking 
funds are due in annual installments of $985,000 to $3,760,000, plus interest 
at 4%. During the time these bonds have been outstanding, the Agency has 
made additional debt service payments, which resulted in these bonds being 
paid in full during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

$               0 
 
$1,506,000 Yuba River Development Revenue Bonds, Series B dated 
June 14, 1977. A total of $11,310,000 of the Series B bonds was authorized. 
The Series B bonds are subordinated and junior in standing with respect to 
the payment of principal and interest to the bonds of Series A. No principal 
or interest is payable from the power revenues as long as any bonds of 
Series A are outstanding. The principal and interest are due July 1, 2027. 
The interest is simple and cumulative at 6% per annum. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013, these outstanding bonds were paid in full. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 $                0 
 
The complete retirement of the Series A and Series B bonds resulted in a $315,250 gain on 
early extinguishment of debt which is noted as a Special Item in the accompanying financial 
statements and schedules. 
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NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

The following is a summary of debt transactions of the Agency for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012: 
 

Balance Additions/ Balance Due within
July 1, 2011 Adjustments Retirements June 30, 2012 one year

Yuba River Development
Series A Revenue Bonds 10,408,000$ (7,680,000)$  2,728,000$   
Series B Revenue Bonds 1,506,000     1,506,000     

Subtotal 11,914,000   -$             (7,680,000)    4,234,000     -$             
Less: bond discount (760,777)       19,173         (741,604)       

Bonds payable, net 11,153,223   -               (7,660,827)    3,492,396     
Less: portion due within one year (6,380,000)    6,380,000     -               

Bonds payable, due after one year 4,773,223$   -$             (1,280,827)$  3,492,396$   

 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt, except accrued absences outstanding, as of 
June 30, 2012, were as follows: 
 

Year Ended Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements

2013 2,728,000$     109,120$        2,837,120$     
2014 -                 
2015 -                 
2016 -                 
2017 -                 

2018 - 2022 -                 
2023 - 2027 -                 

2028 1,506,000$     3,162,600$     4,668,600       

2,728,000$     109,120$        1,506,000$     3,162,600$     7,505,720$     

Yuba River Development
Revenue Bonds

Series A Series B

 
 

NOTE 7 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
The accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following: 
 

2013 2012

Vendors 2,235,658$    3,172,751$    
Other 164,084        132,956        

TOTALS 2,399,742$    3,305,707$    

Fiscal year ended June 30,
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NOTE 8 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Agency entered into a water transfer 
agreement whereby $30,900,000 was paid up front for the transfer of 480,000 acre feet of 
water. The water transfer was scheduled to span over a period of eight (8) years with 60,000 
acre feet of water being transferred annually. The revenue is being recognized as the water is 
actually transferred. The remaining balance of transfer proceeds is reported as deferred income 
until recognition of revenue occurs. 
 
Due to constraints beyond the Agency’s control, no water was transferred during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. 
 
The Agency also records deferred income amounts for certain water sales and electric energy 
sales to PG&E. 
 
The following is a summary of deferred income balances: 
 

2013 2012

Water transfer accord 15,700,000$  19,312,500$  

Other water sales & transfers 250,000        

Electric energy sales 889,847        2,186,409     

TOTALS 16,589,847$  21,748,909$  

Fiscal year ended June 30,

 
 

 
NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS 

 
Plan Description 
The Yuba County Water Agency’s defined benefit pension plan, administered through 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. The Agency is part of the Public Agency portion of CalPERS, an agent multiple-
employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. A menu of 
benefit provisions, as well as other requirements, is established by state statutes within the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The Agency selects optional benefits through state statute 
and Agency resolutions. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. 
Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Actuarial and 
Employer Services Division, P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. 
 
Funding Policy 
The Agency uses the 2% at 55 retirement formula. This formula applies to eligible employees 
who were members of the CalPERS system on or before December 31, 2012. New CalPERS 
employee members, hired on or after January 1, 2013, will be subject to AB 340 and the 
California Pension Reform Act. These employees will participate under a separate plan formula 
using 2% at 62. 
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 
 

Employee and Employer Contribution Obligations 
As are result of the above referenced legislative changes, the Agency developed the following 
matrix that clearly identifies Agency and employee contribution requirements: 

 
Classic Members With Union Affiliation New  Members With Union Affiliation

Formula 2% @ 55 Formula 2% @ 62

EPMC Yes EPMC Yes

PERS Compensable Yes PERS Compensable No

Employer (ER) Paid Employee Share 5% Employer (ER) Paid Employee Share 5%

Employee Paid Share 2% Employee Paid Share 1.25%

FY 2012/13 ER Contibution Rate 11.946% FY 2012/13 ER Contibution Rate 6.25%

Classic Members With NO Union Affiliation New  Members With NO Union Affiliation

Formula 2% @ 55 Formula 2% @ 62

EPMC Yes EPMC No

PERS Compensable Yes PERS Compensable No

Employer Paid Employee Share 5% Employer (ER) Paid Employee Share 0%

Employee Paid Share 2% Employee Paid Share 6.25%

FY 2012/13 ER Contibution Rate 11.946% FY 2012/13 ER Contibution Rate 6.25%

 

As noted above, the Agency has agreed to fund a portion of employee member required 
contributions depending upon the employee’s CalPERS participation and union status. This 
Agency funding is known as the Employer Paid Member Contribution (EPMC). For the year 
ended June 30, 2013, the EPMC paid by the Agency was $166,784, with the employees paying 
$66,655. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the EPMC paid by the Agency was $154,446, with 
the employees paying $61,778.  
 
The Yuba County Water Agency is required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate 
necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer 
contribution rates for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 are noted in the matrix above. For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency employer contributions totaled $405,791. The 
required employer contribution rate, for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was 11.383% for a 
contribution of $353,815. The contribution requirements of plan members are established by 
state statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by 
CalPERS. 
 
Annual Pension Cost 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency had annual pension costs of 
$572,575 and $508,261, respectively. The principal assumptions and methods used to 
determine the annual required contributions are as follows: 
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 
 

Annual Pension Cost (Continued) 
 

1. Valuation date: June 30, 2010 (most recent available data) 
2. Actuarial cost method: Entry age actuarial cost method 
3. Amortization method: Level percent of payroll 
4. Average remaining period as of the valuation date: 18 years  
5. Asset valuation method: 15-year smoothed market 
6. Actuarial assumptions: 

 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) 
 Projected annual salary increases that vary by age, service, and type of 

employment: 3.55% to 14.45% 
 3.00% inflation 
 3.25% payroll growth 
 Individual salary growth based on a merit scale varying by duration of 

employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation component of 3.00% and 
an annual production growth of 0.25% 

 
Trend Information 
Within the Agency’s financial statement, three years of historical trend information are required. 
The trend information is summarized as follows (the most recent data available): 
 

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pension of APC Pension

June 30, Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

2011 458,932$             100.00% none
2012 508,261               100.00% none
2013 572,575               100.00% none

 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
The Agency also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan is administered by the ICMA 
Retirement Corporation. The plan, available to all regular employees at their option, permits 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Agency contributes 7.65% of 
covered salaries for each employee who does not participate in the 401(a) plan below. For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency contributed $168,744, and the employees 
contributed $277,772. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Agency contributed 
$162,906, and the employees contributed $216,473.  
 
On December 17, 2002, the Agency established an IRC Section 401(a) account with the ICMA 
Retirement Corporation. The Agency selects optional benefits through state statute and agency 
resolutions. The Agency contributes 7.65% of covered salaries for each employee who does 
not participate in the 457 plan above. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency 
contributed $80,307 and the employees contributed $88,141 to this plan. For the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012, the Agency contributed $64,434 and the employees contributed $74,755 
to this plan.  
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NOTE 10 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 
 
In addition to the pension benefits, the Agency provides certain health care benefits for retired 
employees through CalPERS. Substantially all of the Agency’s regular employees may become 
eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Agency. At 
June 30, 2013, ten (10) retired employees/survivor dependents met those eligibility 
requirements. At June 30, 2012, nine (9) retired employees/survivor dependents met those 
eligibility requirements.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
Employees are not required to contribute to the plan. Employer contributions are recognized 
when due and when a formal commitment is made to provide the contributions. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
 
Plan Description 
The Yuba County Water Agency’s Retiree Healthcare Plan is part of an aggregation of 
single-employer plans administered by the California Public Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust 
(CERBT) Fund. The Agency provides medical benefits to eligible retirees. Benefit provisions 
are established and may be amended by Agency labor agreements, which are approved by the 
Agency’s Board of Directors. On May 12, 2009, the Board approved a policy to pre-fund retiree 
health care benefits through contributions to the CERBT and authorized the agreement and 
election of the Agency to pre-fund other post-employment benefits through CalPERS. 
 
Funding Policy 
Future contribution requirements of plan members and the Agency will be established and 
amended as needed by the Agency Board. The required contribution will be based on projected 
pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with additional amounts to prefund benefits as 
determined annually by the Board. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency 
contributed a total of $376,000 and $142,000, respectively. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
The Agency’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The Agency is implementing 
GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on 
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of ten years. The following table shows the 
components of the Agency’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the Agency’s net OPEB obligation: 
 
Annual required contribution 487,000$      
Contribution made (376,000)       

Net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended 6/30/13 111,000$      
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NOTE 10 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued) 
 
The ARC was determined as part of a June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation. The ARC rate was 
13.74% of projected annual covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the 
Agency’s annual OPEB cost (expense) totaled $763,000. The OPEB Cost consists of three (3) 
components: Annual Required Contribution, interest earned on the Net OPEB Obligation, and 
any adjustments in the Net OPEB Obligation. The Agency’s Annual OPEB Cost, the 
percentage of Annual OPEB Cost contributed to the plan, and the Net OPEB Obligation as of 
June 30, 2013, were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Annual  Adjustment Of Net OPEB 
Year OPEB  Net OPEB Obligation

June 30 Cost Contribution Obligation (Asset)

2011 490,000$      (1,078,000)$   (993,000)$     (1,581,000)$   
2012 517,000        (142,000)       (1,676,000)    (1,301,000)    
2013 763,000        (376,000)       (1,412,000)    (1,025,000)    

 
Funded Status and Funding Process 
The funded status of the liability as per the most recent actuarial valuation of June 30, 2011, 
was as follows: 
 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 4,048,000$    
Actuarial value of plan assets contributed (3,422,000)     

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 626,000$       

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 84.54%

Actual covered payroll (active plan members) 3,177,218$    

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 19.70%
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
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NOTE 10 POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 
 
In the June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal (EAN) cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 7.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses), actual health care cost premiums for the year, payroll increases of 3.25%, and an 
inflation assumption of 3%. The EAN cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from 
entry date to the expected retirement date. Under the EAN cost method the plan’s normal cost 
is developed as a level percent of payroll over the participants’ working lifetime. The actuarial 
value of plan assets was $3,422,000. The plans unfunded actuarial accrued liability will be 
amortized using the flat dollar amount method over 10 years. 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
The schedule of funding progress presents trend information about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. Trend data is data is presented in the Required Supplementary Information section of 
this report. 
 
 

NOTE 11 POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

All electric power generated by the Operations and Maintenance Fund is sold to the Pacific Gas 
and Electric Company (PG&E) under the terms of a contract dated May 13, 1966, and expires 
in 2016. For the power received, PG&E pays $3,850,000 semi-annually for bond and interest 
and a variable amount for hydro operations. The Operation and Maintenance Fund received, 
from PG&E for operating expenses, a total of $15,393,231 and $8,620,014 for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The significant increase in funding for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013, is primarily attributable to funding provided for significant repair and 
improvement projects. 

 
All electric power generated through the General Fund Hydro Fund is also sold to PG&E under 
the terms of two Standard Offer #4 Contracts dated May 7, 1984, and expiring in 2016 and 
2019. For the power received, PG&E pays for the net energy output under the energy Payment 
Option 1 Forecasted Energy Prices of two megawatts for the Deadwood Power Plant and for 
the firm capacity of 130 kilowatts for the Mini-Hydro Power Plant. The General Fund Hydro 
Fund received payments totaling $219,168 and $238,188 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 12 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 

The Agency received from PG&E power revenues totaling $20,745,733 and $16,558,202 for 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These revenue amounts 
represent 78.10% and 98.25% of total operating revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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NOTE 13 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Water Rights 
The State Water Resources Control Board adopted Revised Water Right Decision 1644 
(RD-1644) in 2003 to address fishery protection, instream flow requirements, and water right 
issues involving the Agency’s diversion and use of water from the Yuba River. Following 
adoption of RD-1644, the Agency, several other water purveyors in Yuba County, and several 
environmental groups filed lawsuits challenging the decision on a variety of grounds. The 
lawsuits, which are still pending, have been consolidated in the San Joaquin County Superior 
Court. Most of the parties to the consolidated litigation have settled their competing interest 
regarding use of water from the Yuba River through the approval of a set of agreements known 
as the Lower Yuba River Accord. The Accord is a comprehensive settlement regarding 
instream flow requirements, water transfers, and other issues related to diversion and use of 
water from the lower Yuba River. 
 
The approval of the Accord substantially resolved the issues that were pending in the Yuba 
County Water Agency v. State Water Resources Control Board. However, two other parties to 
the consolidated cases continue to pursue their arguments in the litigation. On October 29, 
2012, the San Joaquin County Superior Court entered a judgment denying the claims brought 
by these two other parties. On December 11, 2012, one of the parties filed a notice of appeal of 
this judgment. This appeal is pending in the California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District. 
 
If the Court of Appeal were to issue an order directing the San Joaquin County Superior Court 
to require the State Water Resources Control Board to vacate parts or all of RD-1644, then that 
order might also affect the agreements and subsequent water transfers under the Lower Yuba 
River Accord, which in turn could adversely affect future Agency water transfer revenues or 
potentially even require the Agency to reimburse the Department of Water Resources for some 
of the money the Agency has received under the Accord as advance payments for future water 
transfers. However, the Agency believes the likelihood of such result is remote. 
 
Western Water v. Yuba County Water Agency and Western Aggregates 
The Agency is currently a defendant in the case Western Water v. Yuba County Water Agency 
and Western Aggregates. Western Water claims the Agency breached an agreement entered 
into between the parties in 1991. Generally, it is claimed that the Agency had an obligation to 
pay for water which was taken from an area commonly known as Yuba Goldfields. Trial in this 
matter began on January 23, 2012. Following the trial, the court ruled in favor of the Agency 
and denied all of the plaintiff’s claims. Presently, the plaintiff has filed an appeal. There is low 
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome. 
 
Litigation 
The Agency is a party to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. The 
Agency’s management and legal counsel are of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, 
arising from these claims will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the 
Agency. 
 
Grant Contingencies 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment. Any 
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the Agency. 
The amount(s), if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot 
be determined at this time, although the Agency expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 
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NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS 
 
Construction in Progress Commitments 
East-side Canal Extension (Yuba Wheatland Canal Project): 
The Agency received a total of $8.15 million in grant funding from the California Department of 
Water Resources for the project. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, a total of $16,613,796 had 
been expended on this project and is included in the Construction in Progress total reported in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
It is important to note that this project is the result of a contractual agreement between the 
Agency and Wheatland Water District. The original agreement was executed on January 27, 
2004, and was subsequently amended on February 13, 2007, and again on May 25, 2010. The 
agreement and subsequent amendments contain cost allocation, ownership, and payment 
provisions which are to be fully addressed upon completion of project construction. While the 
construction process is complete, the Agency and Wheatland Water District have not fully 
executed the agreement provisions mentioned. Given this status, the project remains classified 
as Construction in Progress. 
 
Loan Commitments 
On March 12, 2013, the Agency Board of Directors approved a $600,000 Line of Credit loan to 
the Camptonville Services District. As of June 30, 2013, no funds had been loaned by the 
Agency. 
 
Project Commitments 
On June 11, 2013, the Agency Board of Directors approved a $1,166,512 grant to the County 
of Yuba Public Works Department to repair a section of Marysville Road near Bullards Bar. As 
of June 30, 2013, no funds had been provided to the County of Yuba for this project. 
 
 

NOTE 15 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Agency is exposed to property and liability claims for which commercial insurance has 
been purchased. There have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage 
compared to the prior year. Settlements have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
 

NOTE 16 RELICENSING 
 

The Agency has been working on the relicensing of its Power Projects as required by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). In connection with the relicensing, the Agency 
has incurred expenses, entered into service contracts, and established cash reserves to pay for 
anticipated costs. Costs incurred for the relicensing are being capitalized and will be amortized 
over the life of the new license once it has been issued by FERC. Total costs capitalized as of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounted to $19,018,648 and $11,699,507, respectively. Total funds 
designated for the relicensing process, at June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounted to $2,473,394 
and $9,718,357, respectively. The relicensing process will take several years to complete. The 
current FERC license expires on April 30, 2016. While the total cost of the relicensing cannot 
be determined, the Agency anticipates it will have sufficient resources to complete the 
relicensing process. 
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NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 

On August 13, 2013, the Agency Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2013-09 declaring 
Deadwood Creek Hydroelectric Project as surplus property and authorized the sale of the 
project along with determining that the sale is exempt for review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 
 

NOTE 18 CONDUIT DEBT 
 
On July 22, 2008, the Agency entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with the 
County of Yuba, California, for the creation of the Yuba Levee Financing Authority. The primary 
purpose of the agreement is to provide for financial assistance to facilitate improvements to the 
levee system in the County. On September 3, 2008, bonds totaling $78,370,000 were issued. 
This issue consisted of the Series A Revenue Bonds totaling $64,175,000, and Series B 
Taxable Revenue Bonds totaling $14,195,000.  
 
As part of this financing, the Agency did enter into an installment sale agreement whereby the 
Agency is required to fund 50% of the debt service payments. The Agency originally anticipated 
that levee fees collected would provide the necessary revenues to cover debt service. With the 
housing market crash there has been little real estate development in the Plumas Lake area. 
To date, approximately $1.88 million has been collected in levee impact fees. Beginning in 
2015, it appears very unlikely that there will be enough fees collected to make the annual 
$4 million in debt service payments. Since 2008, approximately $18 million in debt service 
payments has been made from the bond proceeds set aside for that purpose.   
 
Given the situation described, Yuba County Water Agency may be the only certain source of 
funding for the future debt service payments. The Agency is planning to set aside sufficient 
funding for the debt service payments until such time as additional development impact fees 
become available. 
 
The Bond documents and the Official Statement related to this financing, state that the 
obligation of the Agency to make installment payments does not constitute a debt of the 
Agency. As a result, none of the financial activity associated with this financing is reported in 
the accompanying financial statements of the Agency at this time. The County of Yuba is 
currently administering this debt obligation, and activity relating to the Yuba Levee Financing 
Authority is included in the annual financial report for the County. 
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YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Funding Progress for
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Projected Percentage of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b - a) (a / b) (c) ((b - a) / (c))

1/1/2009 -$            2,722,000$  2,722,000$  -           2,605,000$  104.49%
1/1/2011 2,268,000    3,766,000    1,498,000    60.22% 3,324,000    45.07%
6/30/2011 3,422,000    4,048,000    626,000      84.54% 3,432,000    18.24%

Note:
1.  The above schedule is updated at the time each actuarial valuation is performed.
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Operation General Hydroelec- Power Series A Series A Series B Health
General and Mainte- Fund Hydro tric Utility Revenue Interest Sinking Interest RA

Fund nance Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 41,724,542$  1,329,841$    1,052,439$    14,500$        44,121,322$   54,589,730$   
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 1,069,128      
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 300,034        18,496          18,760          337,290         4,392,518      
Taxes and interest receivable 94,566          2,356            96,922           200,256         

Due from other units 23,647          144,478        6,750            174,875         152,908         
Due from other governments 1,150,349     1,150,349      1,151,469      
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 326,452        921,599        2,102            1,250,153      1,530,610      

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 43,619,590    2,414,414     1,082,407     -$              -$             -$             -$             -$             14,500          47,130,911     63,086,619     

CAPITAL ASSETS, at cost:
Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land and water rights 1,449            2,927,826      2,929,275      2,929,275      
Canal acquisitions 4,605,454     4,605,454      4,605,454      
Construction-in-progress 36,529,522    654,219         37,183,741     35,749,390     

Depreciable capital assets, net:
Utility plant and equipment 2,807,412     231,844,490   234,651,902   220,813,536   
Non-utility property 5,649,958     5,649,958      5,649,266      

Less: accumulated depreciation (2,432,892)    (2,051,184)    (102,651,578)  (107,135,654)  (103,949,417)  

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 44,353,491    -               756,228        132,774,957   -               -               -               -               -               177,884,676   165,797,504   

OTHER ASSETS:
Loans receivable from other

governmental entities 5,239,241     5,239,241      5,323,861      

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 5,239,241     -               -               -                -               -               -               -               -               5,239,241      5,323,861      

TOTAL ASSETS 93,212,322    2,414,414     1,838,635     132,774,957   -               -               -               -               14,500          230,254,828   234,207,984   

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,280,543     1,108,399     10,800          2,399,742      3,305,707      
Customer deposits 20,000           
Wages payable 93,349          93,349           73,647           
Accrued compensated absences 320,255        313,096        17,385          650,736         557,873         
Due to other units 135,100        9,723            15,552          14,500          174,875         152,908         

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,735,898     1,524,567     43,737          -                -               -               -               -               14,500          3,318,702      4,110,135      

LONG-TERM DEBT:
Accrued interest and matured bonds payable -               -               -                4,252,973      
Bonds payable, due after one year -                3,492,396      

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT -               -               -               -                -               -               -               -               -               -                7,745,369      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,735,898     1,524,567     43,737          -                -               -               -               -               14,500          3,318,702      11,855,504     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred income 15,700,000    889,847        16,589,847     21,748,909     

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 15,700,000    889,847        -               -                -               -               -               -               -               16,589,847     21,748,909     

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 44,353,491    756,228        132,774,957   177,884,676   159,142,508   
Restricted for debt service 1,055,294      
Unrestricted 31,422,933    1,038,670     32,461,603     40,405,769     

TOTAL NET POSITION 75,776,424$  -$             1,794,898$    132,774,957$ -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             210,346,279$ 200,603,571$ 

Totals

ASSETS

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY UNIT

 JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2012
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Operation General Hydroelec- Power Series A Series A Series B Health
General and Mainte- Fund Hydro tric Utility Revenue Interest Sinking Interest RA

Fund nance Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2013 2012

Sale of electrical energy 15,393,231$  219,168$      5,133,334$    20,745,733$     16,558,202$      
Water sales 5,816,330$     5,816,330         295,692            

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,816,330       15,393,231    219,168        -$                5,133,334     -$             -$             -$             -$             26,562,063       16,853,894       

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Hydropower generation 2,694,630     82,431          2,777,061         2,916,430         
Administration and general 623,188          4,370,778     111,091        5,105,057         4,335,659         
Maintenance 1,638,048     39,372          1,677,420         1,048,277         
Depreciation and amortization 337,023          103,342        2,894,497        3,334,862         3,374,016         

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 960,211          8,703,456     336,236        2,894,497        -               12,894,400       11,674,382       

NET INCOME/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 4,856,119       6,689,775     (117,068)       (2,894,497)       5,133,334     -               -               -               -               13,667,663       5,179,512         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets 25,708             25,708             3,816               
Property taxes 382,596          382,596            392,829            
Interest income 575,818          8,350            584,168            746,882            
Grants and reimbursements 850,995          850,995            1,441,043         
Miscellaneous income (expense) 6,000             6,000               6,000               
Recreation and camping fees 315,943          315,943            313,121            
Interest expense (9,287)           (60,240)         -               (69,527)            (8,480)              
General administration (3,539,961)      (3,539,961)        (3,291,800)        
Recreation and irrigation (1,202,675)      (1,202,675)        (1,121,617)        
Special projects expense (1,593,452)      (1,593,452)        (2,568,832)        

TOTAL NON-OPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) (4,204,736)      -               8,350            25,708             -               (9,287)           -               (60,240)         -               (4,240,205)        (4,087,038)        

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND SPECIAL ITEM 651,383          6,689,775     (108,718)       (2,868,789)       5,133,334     (9,287)           (60,240)         -               9,427,458         1,092,474         

TRANSFERS:
Transfers in 170,352          1,250,695     3,859,000        1,721,760     1,688,000     3,222,840     -               11,912,647       22,999,244       
Transfers out (170,352)       (7,701,295)    (2,353,000)    (1,688,000)    (11,912,647)      (22,999,244)      
Transfer of fixed assets (7,770,118)    7,770,118        -                   -                   

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS 170,352          (6,689,775)    -               11,629,118       (7,701,295)    (631,240)       -               3,222,840     -               -                   -                   

SPECIAL ITEM:
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt (361,650)          676,900        315,250            -                   

TOTAL SPECIAL ITEM -                 -               -               (361,650)          -               676,900        -               -               -               315,250            -                   

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 821,735                      - (108,718)       8,398,679        (2,567,961)    36,373          -               3,162,600     -               9,742,708         1,092,474         

NET POSITION, July 1 74,954,689     -               1,903,616     124,376,278     2,567,961     (36,373)         -               (3,162,600)    -               200,603,571     199,511,097      

NET POSITION, June 30 75,776,424$    -$             1,794,898$    132,774,957$   $                - $                 -$             -$             -$             210,346,279$    200,603,571$    

Totals

OPERATING REVENUES:

YUBA COUNTY WATER AGENCY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY UNIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Chairman of the Board, General Manager, 
  and Members of the Board of Directors  
Yuba County Water Agency 
Marysville, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Yuba County Water Agency (the Agency) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2013.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Agency’s internal control. 
  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
  
We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Yuba County Water Agency, in a separate letter dated 
December 20, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Davis W. Hammon, Jr., CPA 

 (1924-1989) 
 

 Stephen B. Norman, CPA • PFS 
 Stephen J. Herr, CPA 
James L. Duckett, CPA 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
2080 Myers Street, Suite 3, Oroville, CA  95966-5341    (530) 533-3392    FAX (530) 533-2714 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Agency’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  
 

Davis Hammon & Co. 
 
December 20, 2013 




